
 1 

 
CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

Peterborough, New Hampshire 
 

EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
  

Wednesday, January 31, 2007 
 7:00 P.M.  

SAU Office 
 

MINUTES 
 

Attendees:  Christy Greene, Ray Cote, Bart Goodeve, Tom Welden, Beverly Bacon, Stewart  
                      Brock, Gail Cromwell, Craig Hicks, Mary Allen, Keith Burke, Linda Potter, Dick 
                      Dunning, Sue Dell, Joe Hayes, Gib West 

 
Christy Greene called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
     

1. Approval of Minutes 
!  Meeting of January 8, 2007 

Mary Allen said that on page six she was Òmaking a point of orderÓ.  It should read that she 
Òmade a point of orderÓ.   
Gail Cromwell moved to accept the minutes as amended.  Mary Allen second.  All in favor.  
Stewart Brock abstained.   
 

2. Update on World Language Review Process 
Ali Pantesco, Marie-Claire Wheeler and Sara Krapohl, CVHS Foreign Language teachers, gave a 
presentation on the case for World Language.  Ali Pantesco thanked the Board for allowing them 
to come speak tonight on the value of world language.  Ali said that they have a bias to the value 
of foreign language study.  They hope to educate students with a global language outlook.  Ali 
said that we have students who are currently in foreign countries.  Five are headed abroad next 
year with the Rotary Club in addition to trips planned for this upcoming spring.   
Ali said that the best data they can provide is what the students have to say.  Students were asked 
how they benefited from the study of foreign language.  Some of the responses were as follows.                                    
They were unsure where they would be without world language study.  It has taught them to 
open their mind to other cultures.  It has shaped who they are.  It has connected them to different 
cultures around the world.  Learning a language has taught about family history.  Helped me 
focus on basic points when writing with limited time.  I have been able to apply the study skills 
to other classes.  In addition, students who study a world language improve their performance on 
standardized tests.   Ali cited other student opinions.   
Keith said that the initial task of this group was to answer the question ÒWhy teach foreign 
language.Ó   
Ali said that the ÒwhenÓ is everywhere.  It is as soon as possible.  We can still teach foreign 
language but Ali felt that the more exposure students have to more than one foreign language the 
better.  Ali said that her department feels a great responsibility to their students as well as the 
world. 



 2 

 
 
 
Ali continued to say that her department has put in an enormous amount of time in the foreign 
language areas.  They have networked with other countries and have spent money on text books.   
The State Department has stated that four levels exist for obtaining proficiency in a given 
language.  It takes 650 hours to become proficient at the AP level.  To reach an intermediate 
level in some languages requires 1150 hours.   Four hundred hours are required to be at the 
intermediate level or level four.   
Ray Cote rephrased the ÒwhenÓ question.  He asked outside of the high school if you had two 
years of which you could teach a foreign language, which of the two K-8 would you teach it.  
Secondly, if we open up to other languages would we pick up students that would not have 
otherwise taken the languages that we currently offer? 
Stewart Brock asked in the system that we currently have, are the kids coming to the high school 
adequately prepared to take the leap and succeed in foreign language.  He also asked which other 
languages should we be looking at.  Looking at the global economy are there other languages 
that we should consider?   
Ali said that Germany is the number one exporter in the world.  It is our number three trade 
partner.  She said that we need to consider when deciding on a language how proficient we want 
our students to become. Different time allotments are necessary to meet different proficiencies in 
different languages.   
Melody Russell, Hancock, said that she is trained in Waldorf and public schools.  In addition, she 
said that foreign languages are brought to students early on through movement and games which 
is helpful in some of her post-graduate study.  She said that in the Waldorf schools they choose 
German and French.  She said that she believes in the combination of teaching German and the 
Romance Languages.   Melody added that if you learn one thing well you can translate it to 
anything.  She said that it depends on who the teachers are.  You can have a great language with 
a bad teacher.  She said that her daughter is a senior now and the language has been her pearl.   
Bart Goodeve said that both of his children had the benefit of a Waldorf education.  He requested 
that the presentation that CVHS foreign language teachers presented be photo copied and 
provided to the Board.   
Gail Cromwell said that she is a proponent of introducing Chinese.  She thinks that it will be 
very important in the global economy.  She was unsure where we could go with that.  The 
answer might be that we could get students to whatever level they could get to and they could go 
on beyond high school.  She asked that if what we do at the middle schools had value.    
Christy asked if the teachers have had the opportunity to work with middle school teachers on 
the presentation.  Mme. Wheeler said that they worked together at the beginning.  She said that 
level one was taught in the middle schools.  We had a difficult time getting teachers to teach to 
the level necessary.  They now teach exploratory languages.  It provides a base with activities to 
tie the language together.   
Ali said that we need to decide how important it is and how we do it.   
Gail suggested that one language be taught in the middle school so that it could be taught in 
greater depth.  She said that one of our middle schools currently teach foreign language for two 
years and the other for four years.  She asked which might be better.   
Ali said that we have to look at the goal.  Sara said that she thought that in the past problems 
existed in scheduling students to take a foreign language.  Not all students took a foreign 
language.  She said that if the district decided to have emersion classes that many would be very 
excited.  It helps the younger children when taught at an earlier age. 
Gail asked if the way that languages were taught in the middle schools was the best way.  She 
asked what the best way to allocate that time would be.  She asked how one would set up the best 
preparatory plan. 



 3 

Dick said that at the high school the students choose to take a foreign language.  There is a big 
difference.  The way that they would have to deliver a foreign language is to offer it to all. 
Gib asked if it were an elective program and not enough students sign up, what would we do  
with the program. 
Gail asked if what we are doing now is effective.   
Gib said that at GBS each student gets 30 days of both French and Spanish.  Dick Dunning said 
that seventh and eighth grade students each take one half a year of each language.   
Tom Welden said that he has traveled extensively around the world and is not fluent in any 
language.  He said that he is unsure if we would have German in our schools if Ali was not here.  
He said that we need to decide what languages we want to teach.  Spanish has taken over in the 
United States.  He understands the difficulties in trying to learn different languages.  As we 
design what we are going to do we need to make sure that we have a cultural aspect.  The 
emphasis is that what we start should continue through otherwise the students will lose the 
language.   
Mme. Wheeler said that she had a teacher in high school who told her mother that she would 
never ever be able to speak English.  She said that there are ways to learn a language.   
Ali said that even if you arenÕt a great success in language, studies show that it benefits other 
areas of study.  She asked what the primary goal was.  Is it to open our studentÕs minds?   
She said that the department knows how they feel about it and that they have had amazing 
experiences with language.   
Mary Allen thanked the group for their presentation.  She said that she has two sons who have 
both learned foreign languages.  Her request is for additional data.  There are trends in language.  
Years ago it was Latin or French.  She wondered through some of the associations with other 
foreign language teachers if they could find out what the trends are.  Is there a shift from some 
languages to others.   
Ali said that she knows that Chinese is being talked about all over the place.  She asked what the 
priority of the community was.  Mary said that it would be helpful to have some data.   
Craig Hicks reminded us that no one in the room  thinks that foreign language is not important.  
He cautioned that not all students are one size fits all.  How do we figure out where we are 
going?   
Christy asked if we feel that our first request of  Òwhy teach world languageÓ has been 
satisfactorily answered.  The group agreed.  Christy said that we need to nail down the ÒwhenÓ.   
Keith Burke said that the whole notion is of putting everything in perspective.  What constitutes 
a full education for a ConVal student.  Once we decide what that looks like we can better answer 
ÒwhatÓ and ÒwhenÓ.  The question is ÒhowÓ shall foreign language remain.   
Ali Pantesco asked that before they do all of this did the Board have a sense of how far they want 
to go.  Would it be out of the question to propose that foreign languages be taught earlier on?  
Does the Board feel that this is something that we could realistically change?  Are we looking 
more at cutting things than enriching things?   
Bart said that either way, the Board needs someone to make the case.  When you think about 
other programs there was a constituency making the case.  Absent somebody driving this, the 
curriculum begins to be at risk.   
Ali asked if this was the feeling of the community.  Bart said that he would like to see more 
foreign language.  There needs to be somebody advocating their position.   
Mme. Wheeler said that there are plenty of good arguments in favor of starting language in 
Kindergarten.   
Bart read the foreign language offerings of other surrounding schools.  Christy said that they 
would like to make conscious decisions about language.  We need to decide what we can do 
given our finite resources of time and money.  We would need to know what the plan was and 
allocate money.  We need to decide what the most effective and quality program we can offer 
with time and money is.   



 4 

Ray Cote said that we are limited by time, money and resources.  If we assume that the best way 
to deliver a language is K-12 and we have a strong 9-12, what is the best way to expand that.  If 
we are looking to expand, is what we are doing in the middle school the best preparation that we  
can offer?  The question is if we had a five year plan for improving languages district wide, what 
is it.  He asked that the teachers give the Board the top two ways to move forward.  We are 
looking to improve the program and get the best benefit.   
Keith urged the Board not to look at any discipline in focus.  A clear understanding of the total 
picture is necessary.  ÒWhatÓ needs to be taught is dependant upon what the market is.  Can we 
replace a teacher with a quality teacher.  A quality Chinese teacher will create the same 
advantages for any student.  It all needs to be put into perspective.  It needs to fit into the 
ÒwholeÓ.   
Bart said that he recalls that this project started in anticipation of a challenge to middle school 
staffing.  He said that he agrees with Keith but there are two objectives to foreign language.  The 
first is pure cognitive development and the second is its usefulness.     
Gail said that not all brains are wired the same.  The same cognitive function might not exist for 
all.   
Christy said that concrete next steps will be outlined.  She promised that the teachers will be 
contacted with the next steps.   

 

3.  Position on Academic  Placement of Students 
Keith said that one of the things that were asked for was a position on the academic placement of 
students.  The CVLT (ConVal Leadership Team) provided a list of considerations before 
anything is adopted.  The impact of special education students is one of the considerations.  How 
will it effect vocational students and how will it effect scheduling are among a few listed.  He 
suggested that he meet with the CVLT to discuss some of the items to see if they can agree as to 
what makes sense.  He would like to wait to meet with them to discuss further. 
Tom said that a statement was desired to be placed into the Program of Studies and asked when 
that would be published.  Joe Hayes said that it would be needed by the end of February.   
Christy said that this discussion will be added to the next agenda. 
 

4. Continuation of discussion on the ConVal Graduation 
Requirements 

Keith provided a slide show of  what the world looks like for the future of our students.  The 
message is that while we have the kids here we should maximize every moment.  We should not 
try to reduce the credits.  We should help the students learn how to learn. 
He said that we should make it as intriguing as possible for the time that we have them. 
Gail said that students need to learn what is relevant.  We are not using technology in the most 
productive way.  She would like to teach the children that they are going to have to make choices 
and that we should give them the maximum amount of flexibility.  Keith did not disagree but 
said that we need to maximize the time while we have the students.  We should not shape it so 
that they can get out early.   
Gail said that we are failing at that.  Keith said that we have not heard that tonight.  He added 
that we can do better with everyone.  When planning for the future it is imperative that we 
maximize the time.   
Gail said that we should not make students stay to take courses just to get credits.   
Keith said that we do not do the students justice by reducing the amount of time the students 
would remain.  Some students flourish in the current system.  Some donÕt and because they donÕt 
doesnÕt mean that we should push them out, we should change the system.  
Gail said that the point is you go where you have to to learn.  We provide a student with a basic 
education. 



 5 

Ray Cote said that it is interesting how much of what was presented was old information.  One 
thing that came across is that for 10 years he has argued the technology in the schools.  It is 
immaterial to study technology that is used in industry.  Things change drastically and therefore 
is irrelevant in the middle schools.  Ray added that he wants to take it in a different direction.  
The discussion that has started in terms of looking at competencies is that as far as making the 
best use of time a D- is not sufficient.  When we discuss core competencies what is the group 
that we want competent?  He agreed that those going on to a four year college will take three 
years of a foreign language, his focus is the core competencies.  We talk about looking at the 
entire picture.   
The picture is so large.  We have to look at mathematics and foreign language and keep in mind 
that there is an entire picture to look at.  It is difficult to do anything with the large picture. 
Keith said that it is like looking at an impressionist painting.  You need to step back and look at 
how all of the dots come together and form an image that is beautiful. 
Tom said that his biggest concern is that basic skills need to be learned well.  If you have core 
skills you can do many things.  He would rather have a student take one language and learn it for 
six or eight years and be competent in it.  The ability to communicate and perform basic skills is 
necessary to be successful in life.  We need to raise the bar on the fundamentals.  People wanting 
to go in the trades need to learn the fundamentals.  He would like to offer more core areas taught 
in different ways.   
Ray said that the world changes very quickly. 
Stewart said he agreed that the core competencies need to be looked at and that the bar needed to 
be raised.  He said that we need to look at the delivery.  We canÕt give everyone what they need 
but if we look at the delivery we could solve a significant amount of the issues.  He has never 
been supportive of lowering the credits.  He said that we should look at the delivery.   
Bart said that he thought that we needed to develop something actionable.  He said if we could 
begin to work on the things that we agree upon we could make progress.  He cited those items 
which the group agreed upon.  He suggested that they zero in on those items and that we limit the 
committee to the things that they agree upon.  
Gail said that if we could look at the policies, she felt that they agreed upon them.   
Gail distributed a handout (see attachment #1).  She said that we needed to look at ILBAA 
(attachment #2).  She suggested that we use the wording of IKF.  She would like to agree on 
IKF.  She distributed a copy of a possible grading schedule (see attachment #3).   
Christy said that no further work can be done on this tonight.  We have had an action packed 
night. 
 
Bart suggested that we unbundled it from the twenty credit graduation requirement.  LetÕs 
discuss competencies and discuss the grading schedule.   
Christy clarified that we take the credit argument off of the table and discuss competencies and 
then we will get there in the end.   
Mary referenced the Bow High School handout (see attachment #4).  Part of the Bill that will be 
introduced this year stating that a student remain in high school until the age of 18 might bring us 
back to credit discussion.  She would like to divorce the discussion from competencies.  What we 
want a ConVal graduate to look at must be answered.   
Craig said that he does not disagree.  He said that we are waiting more grading.  He asked why a 
ÒD-Ò is a credit and a ÒBÓ is a credit.  He would like to concentrate on the value of the grade.  He 
would like to perfect the list of what we agree on.  We are not as far apart as we once felt.  He 
proposed that at the next Education Committee meeting that this is the only item discussed.   
Tom asked that Bart email his material to the Board members so that the focus is framed.   
Christy asked if we want the twenty minute presentation from Keith to be at the Board meeting. 
Keith said that it would be best at the Education Committee. 
 
The Board meeting will begin at 6:30 on Tuesday with Personnel.   



 6 

Christy said that Education will meet next on February 12th.   
 
 
 
Gail said that one of the problems is that when we have Board turnover we have to start over 
again.  She said that it is important that this Board finish this job.  The more we drag it out we 
defeat ourselves.   
Mary said that there is a chance that we start over again if the Board was not re-elected.   
 
Craig said that the things that we agree on are the grades and another is the introduction of the 
sixteen credits.  He asked what the drop dead date if we enact sixteen credits with two new half 
credits is.  Sue Dell said that we have been working on curriculum for both of the courses.  We 
are waiting for the approval before having it placed in the Program Of Studies.   
Bart suggested that the sixteen credits be the first agenda item. 
Craig said that one of the half credits is going to be career planning.  He asked that Lynette 
Fagnan provide an update for the next meeting if she has been able to meet with the sophomores.  
He asked what we need to do to make sure that that half credit is obtainable.   
 
Communications Committee meeting was added on Tuesday the 6th before the Personnel and 
Board meeting.   
 
Ray Cote motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Bart Goodeve second. Unanimous. 
Meeting adjourned at 9:35 p.m.     
        
 

5. Other 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
Brenda L. Marschok 
 
 


